
CITY OF COCONUT CREEK 
CHARTER REVIEW BOARD MINUTES 

Government Center 
4800 West Copans Road 
Coconut Creek, FL 33063 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Date: January 14, 2025 
Time: 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting No. 2025-0114 

The meeting was called to order by City Attorney Terrill Pyburn at 6:00 p.m. 

2. PRESENT UPON ROLL CALL: 

Jonathan Ahlbum - District A 
David Mintzes - District B 
Mohammed Razib - District C 
Alex Escoriaza - District D 
Craig Valvo - District E 

Also present: City Clerk Joseph J. Kavanagh, Deputy City Attorney Kathy Mehaffey, and 
City Attorney Terrill C. Pyburn. 

City Attorney Pyburn noted that the meeting was being conducted live with a quorum 
physically present and explained the procedures for the meeting. 

3. INTRODUCTION OF BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF 

Staff and Board members introduced themselves in turn. 

4. OATH OF OFFICE 

City Clerk Kavanagh administered the Oath of Office to the members of the Charter Review 
Board. 

5. BOARD ORIENTATION: REVIEW OF GOVERNMENT-IN-THE-SUNSHINE, PUBLIC 
RECORDS, AND ETHICS LAWS 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey provided an overview of what it means to be a board member 
and gave a thorough presentation on the following topics: 

• Sunshine Law - Section 286.011, Florida Statutes; 
• Public Records Law - Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 
• Social Media; 
• Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees - Section 112.313, Florida 

Statutes; 
• Board Basics; and 
• Parliamentary Procedure. 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
January 14, 2025 
Page 2 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey answered questions and encouraged the Board members 
to contact the City Attorney's Office with any further inquiries. 

6. REVIEW OF TASKS AND DUTIES OF CHARTER REVIEW BOARD 

City Attorney Pyburn reviewed the tasks and duties of the Board and discussed the City 
Charter. She advised that the Board had 120 days from the date of appointment to 
complete the task and reviewed the next steps. 

Board Member Craig Valvo asked for clarification on the City Commission role in 
approving the recommendations of the Board. City Attorney Pyburn explained briefly. 
Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey provided additional details. 

Discussion ensued as to documents available for reference, including the minutes of the 
past Charter Review Board meetings, the final ordinance of the 2020 Charter Review 
Board, and the Charters of other municipalities. City Clerk Kavanagh outlined the steps to 
access resources on the City website. 

7. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 

City Attorney Pyburn opened the floor for nominations for the position of Board Chair. 

Board Member David Mintzes nominated Craig Valvo as Chair, seconded by Board Member 
Alex Escoriaza. There being no further nominations, Mr. Valvo was named Board Chair. 

City Attorney Pyburn opened the floor for nominations for the position of Vice Chair. 

Board Member Mohammed Razib nominated Alex Escoriaza as Vice Chair, seconded by 
Chair Valvo. There being no further nominations, Mr. Escoriaza was named Vice Chair. 

8. ESTABLISHMENT OF MEETING SCHEDULE 

The Board agreed to the following tentative meeting schedule: 

Wednesday, January 22, 5 p.m., Planning and Zoning Room 
Tuesday, January 28, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Wednesday, February 5, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Tuesday, February 11, 5 p.m., Planning and Zoning Room 
Wednesday, February 19, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Wednesday, February 26, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Thursday, March 6, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Wednesday, March 19, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Wednesday, March 26, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Wednesday, April 2, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Tuesday, April 8, 5 p.m., Planning and Zoning Room 
Wednesday, April 16, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Wednesday, April 23, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 
Wednesday, April 30, 5 p.m., City Commission Chambers 

9. INPUT FROM THE PUBLIC 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
January 14, 2025 
Page 3 

There was no input from the Public. 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

Date ' 1 













































CITY OF COCONUT CREEK 
CHARTER REVIEW BOARD MINUTES 

Government Center 
4800 West Copans Road 
Coconut Creek, FL 33063 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Date: February 19, 2025 
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
Location: Public Meeting Room 
Adjacent to Commission Chambers 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Craig Valvo at 5:01 p.m. 

2. PRESENT UPON ROLL CALL: 

Chair Craig Valvo - District E 
Vice Chair Alex Escoriaza - District D 
Jonathan Ahlbum - District A 
David Mintzes - District B 
Mohammed Razib - District C 

Also present: City Clerk Joseph J. Kavanagh, City Attorney Terrill C. Pyburn, and Deputy 
City Attorney Kathy Mehaffey. 

City Attorney Pyburn noted that the meeting was being conducted live with a quorum 
physically present and explained the procedures for the meeting. 

3. REVIEW OF CHARTER SECTIONS 

Chair Valvo noted that the Board had been provided with a list of topics addressed to date 
in the backup materials. He began the Charter Section Review with Section 405. -
Removal. City Attorney Pyburn explained that while the City Manager and City Attorney 
have employment contracts, the Charter also addresses the process for removal. Vice 
Chair Escoriaza asked how a conflict between the contract and the Charter would be 
resolved. City Attorney Pyburn explained that the contract may have more up-to-date 
references to State law than the Charter due to the time involved in making Charter 
updates. Chair Valvo highlighted the previous conversation regarding whether there 
should be a process for expedited removal of a City Manager should an egregious 
situation occur. City Attorney Pyburn stated that the employment contract provided for 
dismissal, and the Charter included a process for appeal of a decision. She discussed the 
existing City Manager contract briefly. Discussion continued regarding the removal 
process and timeline. 

Discussion continued with Section 406. - Appointment and Duties of the City Clerk. 
Vice Chair Escoriaza asked why the City Clerk was called out in a section while other 
department heads were not. City Attorney Pyburn stated she believed this was related to 
the specific duties which were distinguishable from other positions. City Clerk Kavanagh 
commented that the City Clerk was arguably the longest standing position in City 
government responsible for maintenance of records going back thousands of years, and 
noted it was usually provided for as a Charter officer regardless of the structure of the 
municipality. Vice Chair Escoriaza inquired as to whether charters in other cities 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
February 19, 2025 
Page 2 

specifically called out additional positions that reported to the City Manager. Deputy City 
Attorney Mehaffey stated there were examples of the individual departments or directors 
being identified. Chair Valvo asked City Clerk Kavanagh if he had any feedback on 
Section 406. City Clerk Kavanagh stated the responsibilities were clearly annotated and 
explained transparently. 

Review continued with Section 501. - Organization of Boards and Committees. City 
Attorney Pyburn noted that the associated section of City Code that addressed Boards 
and Committees had been shared in the backup. She pointed out the inclusion of 
recommended qualifications for Parks and Recreation Advisory Board members and 
Planning and Zoning Board members. Discussion ensued regarding flexibility in 
appointments of board members, recommended guidelines, terms, the role of experience 
in board service, reappointments, at-large appointments, and service on more than one 
(1) board at the same time. City Attorney Pyburn advised that State law generally 
prohibited dual office holding, except for a specific provision for the Charter Review Board 
and Redistricting Board. Chair Valvo asked about boards that were previously sunset. City 
Attorney Pyburn provided a brief background and discussed statutory requirements. Chair 
Valvo commented that he saw value in additional boards as a way for residents to get 
more involved and noted this may be a recommendation to the Commission rather than a 
recommended change to the Charter. Discussion continued regarding the Citizens 
Academy and Ambassador Program. 

Board Member David Mintzes stated he would like to consider adding boards. He asked 
about the role of the previously sunset Education Advisory Board. Deputy City Attorney 
Mehaffey stated that she would provide a summary of that board's activity. Discussion 
continued on staffing concerns and education topics, including the Teen Political Forum, 
Lunch Bunch, Broward County School Board, Seminole Coconut Creek Education 
Foundation, Junior Achievement, mock City Commission, Local Government Day, and 
internships. Board Member Mohammed Razib asserted the Board should recommend 
bringing the Education Advisory Board back. Chair Valvo stated that the Community 
Outreach Advisory Board was also of interest. Consensus was to add the topic to the list 
of items to revisit. 

Chair Valvo suggested leaving Article VI. - Financial Procedures for discussion at the 
February 26 meeting with Finance and Administrative Services Director Peta-Gay Lake 
and City Manager Sheila Rose. 

Vice Chair Escoriaza asked for clarification on the structure of the Capital Improvement 
Plan and its budget. City Attorney Pyburn explained briefly. 

Chair Valvo stated he wanted to better understand the increase in City revenue from 
property taxes each year, including how it was forecasted and accounted for in the 
budget, as well as how the converse would be managed. Discussion ensued. 

Discussion continued with Article VII. - Registration and Elections. Vice Chair Escoriaza 
asked about previous changes to the article. City Attorney Pyburn stated that changes 
were made to Section 701 in 2016 for consistency with State law. 

Mr. Razib highlighted the opinions shared by the Mayor, Vice Mayor, and Commissioners 
related to moving the date of the municipal election. Discussion ensued regarding 
potential cost savings and State preemption. Chair Valvo stated he had been asking 
people their position on the issue since it was brought up, and the more he considers, the 
more he leans toward the idea of a March election that just focuses on the City and can be 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
February 19, 2025 
Page 3 

accompanied by advertising and forums specific to City issues. He added that he would 
like any opportunity to protect the City from partisanship, and November may be a conduit 
to bring that in. Board Member Jonathan Ahlbum agreed, noting that people he spoke with 
seemed to prefer keeping the municipal election separate. 

Mr. Mintzes commented that he could see the City doing a better job of getting out the 
vote and communicating with people about the local election. Vice Chair Escoriaza stated 
that he had shifted from a preference for a March election to November after seeing the 
City ballot. He noted he agreed that a change should not be made before the elected 
Mayor change went into effect. He asked about the impact on the timeline for registration 
of candidates and stated he felt he had heard more about the recent referendum than 
about past elections. City Clerk Kavanagh shared that in the last election cycle, the City 
had implemented a new promotional strategy, which had not been done previously. He 
stated they had taken the best of what was done in other cities to develop a strategy and 
commented on the metrics and timeline. 

Chair Valvo asked about staffing differences between November and March elections due 
to longer poll times. City Attorney Pyburn stated there was early voting available for the 
November elections, but not the March elections. She explained that, in March, votes can 
be cast by using a vote-by-mail ballot or in person on the day of the election. Chair Valvo 
asked whether the March elections were less expensive for candidates. Discussion 
continued regarding keeping election influence local and party affiliation. 

Mr. Razib stated his perception was that people showing up to vote in March were more 
involved and may be influenced in ways other than party affiliation. He commented that it 
made sense for the municipal election to be in November. Discussion continued regarding 
informed voters and ballot placement. 

Mr. Mintzes asked for clarification on whether Section 702. - Election Precincts and 
Polling Places impacted the City's districts. City Attorney Pyburn advised they were 
separate issues. Discussion ensued regarding vote-by-mail ballot changes in State law. 

Chair Valvo asked if the filing fee for candidates needed to be in the Charter. City Clerk 
Kavanagh explained there were typically two (2) filing fees, one (1) set by the City and one 
(1) set by the State, which was a percentage of the City Commission salary. City Attorney 
Pyburn noted there was a process to request the fee be waived. Discussion continued. 

Mr. Mintzes inquired as to whether candidates were barred from endorsement by partisan 
groups. City Attorney Pyburn discussed electioneering requirements and stated 
endorsements had happened in recent years in several cities. She advised that the 
language of the ordinance was consistent with State law for nonpartisan seats. 

Chair Valvo referenced Section 712. - Titling of Proposed Ordinances and asked about 
application of the section. City Attorney Pyburn explained this section covered ballot 
language. She stated the language tracked State law but was not as specific. 

Mr. Mintzes asked who determined which languages the ballot was available in. City Clerk 
Kavanagh stated the languages were determined by the State, but there was not 
consistency between municipalities. He provided a brief background and advised that 
Coconut Creek had chosen to translate at the highest level available. 

Consensus was to begin the review with Article VIII. - Initiative, Referendum, and Recall 
at the next meeting. 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
February 19, 2025 
Page 4 

The Board reviewed the list of previously-discussed Charter topics. Regarding the 
language proposed for Section 303, Vice Chair Escoriaza noted he preferred City 
Manager/City Attorney spelled out rather than utilizing pronouns for consistency as 
provided in the second option . Discussion ensued and consensus was provided by the 
Board to proceed with the second option with City Manager/City Attorney spelled out for 
consistency. 

Chair Valvo stated the subject of whether Commissioners should be barred from holding 
positions on Homeowners Association (HOA) and Condominium Owners Association 
(COA) boards had been brought up by the Board and members of the Commission . He 
commented that he was in support of working out the language. City Attorney Pyburn 
shared that the subject of including spouses had come up in discussion, and staff had 
conducted research , which found this addition would not be supported by law. Vice Chair 
Escoriaza stated officers of the board should be included, but service at other levels such 
as committees should be excluded. Mr. Mintzes highlighted that there were additional 
levels of boards within a Master Association. Discussion continued as to whether size of 
the association should be considered, master associations, and personal preferences. Mr. 
Razib asserted the restriction should only go into effect when a candidate wins. He stated 
the requirement would help to protect the City's resources. Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey 
stated staff would draft language for review and further discussion. 

Chair Valvo highlighted the previous conversation regarding qualifications to run for the 
Commission . He stated the Board had discussed a requirement for voter registration , but it 
had come out during conversation that was already a requirement by State law. He noted 
that he had considered other qualifications, such as Citizens Academy or service on a 
board, but found he may be influenced by current situations. 

Mr. Mintzes commented on the legality of establishing criteria for candidacy that go 
beyond the requirements at the State and National level. City Attorney Pyburn stated this 
was a valid point which fit with the case law. She noted there was a requirement that a 
candidate must be a resident for one (1) year, and this has been upheld through several 
cases. Discussion continued regarding potential criteria , case law, and training required 
for elected officials . 

The Board continued to review the list of previously discussed Charter topics . 

Mr. Razib highlighted a potential conflict with the end time of meetings in the upcoming 
month. Discussion ensued regarding meeting times and room availability. Consensus was 
to have a short meeting on March 6, from 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

Date 





























CITY OF COCONUT CREEK 
CHARTER REVIEW BOARD MINUTES 

Government Center 
4800 West Copans Road 
Coconut Creek, FL 33063 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Date: March 26, 2025 
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
Location: Public Meeting Room 
Adjacent to Commission Chambers 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Craig Valvo at 5:06 p.m. 

2. PRESENT UPON ROLL CALL: 

Chair Craig Valvo - District E 
Vice Chair Alex Escoriaza - District D 
Jonathan Ahlbum - District A 
David Mintzes - District B 
Mohammed Razib - District C 

Also present: City Clerk Joseph J. Kavanagh, Deputy City Attorney Kathy Mehaffey, and 
City Attorney Terrill C. Pyburn. 

City Attorney Pyburn noted that the meeting was being conducted live with a quorum 
physically present and explained the procedures for the meeting. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

3. A MOTION APPROVING THE MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS CHARTER REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING(S). (2025-0226 AND 2025-0306) 

MOTION: Mintzes/Ahlbum - To approve the Minutes of the February 26, 2025, and 
March 6, 2025, Charter Review Board Meetings, as presented. 

The Motion passed by a unanimous voice vote. 

4. REVIEW OF CHARTER SECTIONS 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey reviewed materials provided by staff for the Board's 
discussion of Single Member Districts. She stated staff had provided a map of the 
Commission Districts A-E and the voting precincts. She noted voting precincts were 
established by the Supervisor of Elections Office, and the City had no say in changes. She 
explained there had been changes between 2021 and 2023, which included a reduction 
from fourteen (14) precincts to nine (9). She stated that because of the precinct changes, 
data was provided on the 2023 and 2025 elections, to include a summary of voter turnout 
and associated data analysis. 

City Attorney Pyburn highlighted Senate Bill 1416, which proposed a change for all 
municipal elections to November. She stated she would provide updates as available. 
Discussion ensued regarding the potential timeline for implementation of the legislation if 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 2 

passed and the associated impacts. 

The Board reviewed and discussed the voting data provided and the impact of districts, 
precincts, and voter turnout. Chair Valvo outlined a hypothetical example in which a single 
district or precinct sought to elect candidates based on pushing a single issue through. He 
pointed out candidates in the past had told him that support from Wynmoor was a must, 
and he was interested in whether this was supported by data. He stated that, in reviewing 
the data, it appeared in the past two (2) elections, Precinct 4 saw the election the same as 
the rest of Coconut Creek, but his concern would be in the event that they did not. 

Board Member David Mintzes commented on the communication within Wynmoor, noting 
that with close to 8,000 people on an email list, it was easier to campaign to a more 
cohesive group. Discussion continued. Mr. Mintzes stated he was interested in exploring 
each district electing its own Commissioner rather having at-large District Commissioners. 

Chair Valvo advised that he had been discussing the idea in the community, and the only 
consistent negative feedback he had received was that if a single district elected a 
Commissioner, that Commissioner would be less incentivized to serve the whole City. He 
stated he could see that as a potential downside but personally saw it as each district 
being well represented by an individual Commissioner and the Mayor. 

City Attorney Pyburn noted that the Redistricting Board would be charged in 2026 with 
reducing the districts from five (5) to four (4). Chair Valvo commented that in his 
experience serving on that board, instructions included consideration of where existing 
Commissioners lived to avoid two (2) in a single district and added that it would be a 
complicated job. Discussion continued. Chair Valvo stated another potential downside was 
a district with low turnout. 

Vice Chair Alex Escoriaza commented that Precinct 4 could be divided. Chair Valvo stated 
that was something the Redistricting Board could look at, but it would conflict with some of 
the guidelines. Discussion continued regarding the potential for Single Member Districts, 
voter turnout, and voter disenfranchisement. City Clerk Kavanagh provided additional 
details on voter turnout. 

Chair Valvo stated he had also received feedback on the cost of running a City 
Commission campaign. City Clerk Kavanagh reviewed fundraising figures for the most 
recent elections and clarified what happens to remaining funds. 

Chair Valvo asked when the Commission last did not include a resident of Wyn moor. 
Discussion continued. 

Board Member Mohammed Razib asked what district MainStreet would be part of. City 
Attorney Pyburn pointed out the development on the map and reiterated that this decision 
would be made by the Redistricting Board in 2026. 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey stated the Board was discussing three (3) options, 
including the existing identified district/at-large voting system, single member voting 
districts, and at-large candidate/voting. Consensus was to take the third option off the 
table and continue discussion. 

Chair Valvo pointed out that the Board was not making a decision on what to do but 
making a recommendation to the voters. He stated his view was that the issue would need 
to be stronger and easier to understand in order to get voters to turn out. Mr. Mintzes 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 3 

stated that he believed with enough communication, there would be interest. Discussion 
continued. Consensus was to propose a change. City Attorney Pyburn stated staff would 
bring forward language at the next meeting. 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey continued the Charter review with draft language for 
Section 802, as follows: 

Section 802. - Commencement of Proceedings; Petitioner's Committee; Affidavit. 

§.. Any fifty (50) qualified voters may commence initiative or repeal proceedings by 
filing with the City Clerk an affidavit stating their names and addresses and 
specifying the address to which all notices to the committee are to be sent, and 
setting out in full the proposed initiative ordinance or citing the ordinance sought 
to be repealed. 

b. The proposed initiative ordinance or ordinance sought to be repealed shall be 
reviewed by the City Attorney or designee within fifteen (15) days of submittal for 
consistency with the City Charter. Comprehensive Plan. City Code of Ordinances 
and applicable City. County. State. and Federal laws and requirements. If the 
City Attorney determines the proposed amendment is facially invalid. 
inconsistent, or creates conflicts with any other applicable legal authority. the 
petition shall be returned to the Petitioner. together with a notice of deficiency 
specifying the deficiencies or conflicts. The Petitioner will thereafter have a 
period of thirty (30) days from the date of the notice of deficiency within which to 
submit a revised petition addressing such deficiencies. The City Attorney shall 
review any subsequent resubmissions pursuant to this paragraph and provide a 
finding of consistency or deficiency within fifteen (15) days of any resubmission. 
Petitioner may submit a revised petition addressing identified deficiencies no 
more than three (3) times after the initial submittal. If the petition is determined 
deficient after the third (3rd

) resubmittal, the petition shall be deemed withdrawn. 
Petitioner may initiate a new petition pursuant to this Section 802. with new 
affidavits pursuant to Section 802(a), no sooner than thirty 30 days after a prior 
petition is deemed withdrawn. 

c. If the City Attorney determines the petition is consistent. Promptly after the 
affidavit of the petitioner's oommittee is filed, the City Clerk shall promptly issue 
the appropriate blank petition forms to the petitioner's committee. 

Discussion ensued regarding the language, including distinction between sufficiency and 
consistency with the City and State requirements, and the number of times a petition could 
be resubmitted. Chair Valvo stated with reasonable effort, this was possible, as the 
process would provide the petitioner with thousands of dollars of legal guidance. Deputy 
City Attorney Mehaffey advised that this change would trigger a need to amend 803 to 
match the language, as follows: 

Section 803. - General Authority. 

c. Time for Filing Petition to Initiate or Repeal an Ordinance. Initiative and Repeal 
Petitions signed by a minimum of five (5) percent of the total number of 
registered voters as of the preceding election must be filed within ninety (90) 
days after the affidavit of the petitioner's oommittee is filed with the City Ci-er.'< 
blank petition forms are provided by the petitioner to the City Clerk. 

Chair Valvo asked if the forms would be marked in such a way that the same signatures 
could not be resubmitted. City Clerk Kavanagh advised that signatures were dated and 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 4 

verified by the Clerk, so they would have records of previous submissions, and signatures 
would not be counted if they did not meet the requirements. 

Consensus was to approve the changes to Section 802 and Section 803. 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey continued the Charter review with draft language for 
Section 806, as follows: 

Section 806. - Action by Petitions. 

a. Action by Commission. When an initiative or repeal petition has been finally 
determined sufficient, the Commission shall promptly consider the proposed 
initiative ordinance or repeal of the referred ordinance in the manner provided in 
Section 311 of this Charter. If the Commission fails to adopt a proposed initiative 
ordinance without any change in substance within sixty (60) days or fails to 
repeal the referred ordinance within thirty (30) sixty (60) days after the date the 
petition was finally determined sufficient, it shall submit the proposed or referred 
ordinance to the voters of the City, unless same would violate state or federal 
law. 

b. Submission to Voters. The vote of the qualified voters of the City on an ordinance 
proposed for adoption or for repeal shall be held not less than thirty (30) days 
and not later than one (1) year from the date of the final Commission vote 
thereon and shall be noticed in accordance with state law. If no general election 
or regular City election is to be held within the period prescribed in the 
subsection, the Commission shall provide for a special election otherwise, the 
vote shall be held at the same time as such regular election, except that the 
Commission may in its discretion provide for a special election at an earlier date 
within the prescribed period. Copies of the ordinance proposed for adoption or for 
repeal shall be made available at the polls. 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey explained that the proposed changes stemmed from 
conversation of the Board at its previous meeting. Consensus was to move forward with 
the changes to Section 806. 

Deputy City Attorney Mehaffey reviewed draft changes to Section 907 to address 
concerns of conflicting amendments, including possible scenarios. Discussion ensued 
regarding simplification of the language and ballot language. 

Consensus was to approve the addition of subsection (b) to Section 907 as follows: 

Section 907. - Charter Review; Charter Review Board. 

b. Conflicting Charter Amendments. In the event that a Charter Amendment 
proposed pursuant to Article VIII, Initiative, Referendum, and Recall, or by the 
Charter Review Board or City Commission, is on the ballot at the same election 
in which another Charter Amendment is proposed pursuant to Article VIII, 
Initiative, Referendum, and Recall, or by the Charter Review Board or City 
Commission, and the results of the election on those Charter Amendments 
creates a conflict between the two, then in that event they shall go into effect in 
respect to their provisions that are not in conflict and the one receiving the 
highest affirmative vote shall prevail as to the provisions in conflict. 

Consensus was to approve the concept of the changes to Section 907, as discussed, with 



Charter Review Board Minutes 
March 26, 2025 
Page 5 

a request that staff revisit Section 907 to see if language could be further simplified . 

5. CONFIRMATION OF UPCOMING APRIL MEETING DATES 

Chair Valvo stated the next meeting was scheduled for April 2, 2025 at 5 p.m. 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

Date 




































	Minutes 2025-0114 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0122 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0128 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0205 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0211 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0219 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0226 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0306 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0319 CRB
	Minutes 2025-0326 CRB

